PAGE  
3

Ridgeway

SN063160            OS  25”  First Edition          Llawhaden

Considered by Cadw for inclusion in Register but rejected

Property of the Foley family for many generations.

An earlier house, assessed for three hearths in 1670, stood at some distance from the present mansion on the site of the later stable yard (ie to the north).

On 30th August 1711 Richard Fawley the elder of Ridgeway, gent., Sir George Barlow of Slebech, Bt., William Phillips of Haythog, Esq., and Richard Fawley the younger of Ridgeway, gent. agreed the release of lands in Pembrokeshire, including the capital massuage called Ridgeway alias Lletherston, to trustees for the use of Richard Fawley the younger to enable him to make “a competent settlement on any woman he may happen to marry and may bring a fortune into the family”.

The prsent house was built on high ground and completed in 1741.

Fenton refers to it as “the elegant residence of my estimable friend J.H.Foley Esq. crowning it amidst groves chiefly of his own planting”.

In 1795 John Herbert Foley was High Sheriff. He was the son of John Foley and Bridget Herbert, co-heiress of Court Henry, Carmarthenshire. Queens College, Oxford. Married Mary Anne Chambers of Wood, Kent. He died 1809 and she in 1858. His younger brother was Admiral Sir Thomas Foley of Abermarlais.

In 1809 Ridgeway was advertised to let with a full description of the house, coach-house and stables, walled garden and pleasure gardens and plantations - in all about 350 acres.

In 1871 it was the seat of R.P. Davies and a photograph appeared in Photographs in South Wales 1871 by C.S.Allen of Tenby. (NLW  559)

1946?  Estate including mansion and contents sold by Mrs Foley-Philipps.  A Mr Griffiths from Carmarthenshire  then owned and farmed it for 25 years until he is said to got into financial difficulties.

1981 Francis Jones mentions that the house was divided into flats. It later became a retirement home.

1982    Gravestone in Llawhaden churchyard to Sq. Leader Brundle (1916 - 1982)

In Amroth church there is a memorial plaque to Richard Fowley of Merrixton who died in 1743. He was the son of Richard Fowley of Ridgeway and husband to Rebecca, daughter of Daniel Poyer of Grove.

Visit 3rd January 1996.

The original carriage drive started about 50 yards to the west of the river crossing of the A40. There are the ruins of a small lodge on the left which has had subsequent agricultural use with a rusting corrugated roof and “modern” glazed earthenware chimneys. The drive goes NE for several hundred yards of public right of way. The latter enters a field and the footpath goes north-eastwards towards Llawhaden bridge. The private drive continues northwards to a house (possibly on the site of Brake Cottage). Originally it then swept westwards towards the mansion.

At some point (in the 19C?) a new public road was constructed from the present A40, perhaps 200yards west of the entrance to the carriage drive, to the village of Llawhaden. Trees were planted along it and it must have soon superceded the drive as access to the mansion.

There is a formal entrance to the mansion grounds from this road with stone piers

A short curving drive takes us to the turning area to the east side of the house. There is a lawn to the left, in front of the house, with a ha-ha facing south; fairly recent planting of conifers along the top interferes with the view.

To the SE of this grassy area is a stone plinth (?) about 2m x 1.5m and standing about 30cm high.

To the west of the mansion is a double shed (toilets?) with very thick stone walls. No roof. The elderly ex-gardener (Mr Palmer?) says that it was only a store shed in his day.

There is a tennis court to the west of the house bounding the remains of a woodland garden with remnants of a path system. On the north side of this area is the dog (graves) garden backed by the south wall of the walled garden. Remains of walls and gate piers.

The walls of the walled garden have been restored in recent times. The north wall is brick, at least on the inside with a high central section which would have backed the lean-to glasshouse. 

This had an internal and an external water butt the latter, of slate, remaining in place. The retired gardener claims to remember the earlier flues being replaced by a pipe system. Grapes were produced and stored above the groom’s cottage.

There is little sign of the original buildings behind. The whole garden has been grassed over.

There is a small gate at the SW corner of the walled garden and the ex-gardener remembers herbaceous borders along the west wall on either side of a gravel (?) path. Bay tree in SW corner. In his time it was mostly vegetable gardening. There were box hedges (no trace now though some lonicera nitida is growing outside near the dog garden) and roses.

There are remnants of the slips to the west and of the shelter belt to north and west. The coach-house on the east wall has been modernised to produce accommodation for staff.

After reaching the house the drive curves north to the coach-house area. To its left are rhododendrons (Rh. ponticum?) and to the right is a substantial beech hedge.

Of the features listed in the RCAMW database:

Cov    ?

Cd       major part under other ownership

Gh       site only

Lo       ruin

P         some

Pt        no

Ri        some distance from present site

Wg      yes

Wold   yes

There remain also:

Hh

La

Gate

Owner (1996)  (Mr and?) Mrs Ruskin, Ridgeway Nursing Home, Llawhaden, Narberth.

     01437 541257.                              
Documents in file:

OS 25” first edition map (two photocopies).

C.S. Allen 1871 photograph from album owned by Miss Charlotte Kelway. 

Eight colour photographsof entrance, mansion, coach-house and garden

Completed WHGT form with sketch-plan.

Wesstern Telegraph  28th April 2004  Aussie is now Constable of Llawhaden!

